# **QUEEN'S PARK JOINT CONSULTATIVE GROUP**

# Tuesday, 21 June 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Queen's Park Joint Consultative Group held at Committee Room, St Anne's and St Andrew's Church, 125 Salusbury Road, NW6 6RG at 12 noon

#### **Present**

#### Members:

Virginia Rounding (Chairman)

Karina Dostalova (Deputy Chairman)

Barbara Newman

Councillor Neil Nerva (London Borough of

Brent)

John Blandy (Queen's Park Area

Residents' Association)

Virginia Bonham Carter (Ark Franklin

Primary Academy)

Helen Durnford (Queen's Park Area

Residents' Association)

Giovanna Torrico (Friends of Salusbury

School)

Vicky Zentner (Kensal Rise Residents'

Association)

## Officers:

Fern Aldous - Town Clerk's Department
David Arnold - Town Clerk's Department

Bob Warnock - Superintendent of Hampstead Heath
Richard Gentry - Constabulary & Queen's Park Manager

### 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Deputy John Barker, Professor John Lumley, and Councillor James Denselow (London Borough of Brent).

# 2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA

There were none.

## 3. MINUTES

**RESOLVED** – That the public minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 2015 be approved.

## **Matters Arising**

## **Ecology and Environment**

The Queen's Park Manager advised that green waste was being removed via skips for £350-400 per skip. Removal figures and costs would be reported to the next Group meeting.

# Children's Play Area

The application for funding for new swings in the children's sandpit and play area had not been successful but the Queen's Park Area Residents' Association were donating £3,000 to fund the new swings instead.

# Football Coaching

Discussions regarding a licence were ongoing with Kiddikicks and a junior running group. A licence had recently been issued for a weeknight Tag Rugby session.

# 4. SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE REPORT

The Group received a report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath that provided an update on the operational work and accomplishments of the Queen's Park Team since November 2015. Members noted and considered the following matters:

## Staffing

- Proposals for changes to staff working arrangements would be reported to the Establishment and Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood & Queen's Park Committees in July 2016.
- Staff across the North London Open Spaces Division currently worked flexibly across all three sites and permanent full-time staff at the Park were supplemented by a number of casual staff throughout spring and summer.
- There were eight full-time equivalent staff positions, including one permanent post that was currently being covered by a casual member of staff.
- In response to a member's (Queen's Park Area Residents' Association) concerns regarding recent perceived staff shortages at the children's play area swimming pool, the Park Manager advised that signage had been installed by the pool notifying visitors of who to contact if it was closed.

#### Operational Management

- The petanque area had recently been replaced by new trim trail equipment.
- The London Borough of Brent had funding available for additional equipment and the Group requested that any additional new equipment have a more natural timber look, so long as the LBB were able to provide funding for maintenance of such equipment.
- The Group also noted that there were a number of outdoor gyms at nearby parks so any new equipment at Queen's Park should be limited in number and similar to the current trim trail equipment, as opposed to moving gym equipment.
- The Deputy Chairman suggested a new, perhaps more child-friendly, design for the donation box in the Children's Farm to encourage more donations from young people.
- In response to a question from the Deputy Chairman regarding health and safety reporting following a recent incident, the Park Manager advised that training would be provided to casual staff as a reminder of how to respond to reports of anti-social behaviour the Superintendent

added that the incident in question would be reviewed and learning outcomes would be applied in future.

# Visitors and Community

- The Queen's Park Area Residents' Association held a successful Open Gardens and Studios event on 19 June 2016.
- Positive feedback had been received from visitors regarding the recent introduction of Heath Constabulary Officers to the Park.
- An online visitor survey seeking views on events in the Park was currently available on the website and via Twitter.
- The Group considered the proposals for an all-day fireworks event on 5 November 2016, which aimed to attract approx. 10,000 visitors:-
- Following concerns surrounding the event's impact on the green space, the scale of the event and the desire for a more community-led event aimed at regular visitors to the Park, the Group agreed to decline the request for an event licence and await the outcome of feedback from the events survey to consider this as a future event for 2017 at the earliest.
- The Group also noted that a smaller scale community-led event could involve donation collections to cover the cost of the firework display and would cause less damage to the Park.

#### **RESOLVED** – That:-

- a) The Superintendent's update report be noted; and
- b) the request for a licence for the fireworks display be declined, awaiting the outcome of feedback from the Event Survey to consider this as a future event.

# 5. 2016-19 OPEN SPACES BUSINESS PLAN

The Group received a report of the Director of Open Spaces that provided details regarding the aspects of the Open Spaces Department's Business Plan 2016-19 that related to Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park.

**RESOLVED** – That the Open Spaces Department Business Plan 2016-19 be noted.

#### 6. OAK PROCESIONNARY MOTH PLAN 2016

The Group received a report of the Director of Open Spaces that outlined the plans for Oak Processionary Moth (OPM) management across London and the South East during 2016. Members were advised that OPM had been found and removed from the same aak trees as in 2015. The trees had since been sprayed and signage had been erected near them. A member (London Borough of Brent) added that he would check whether the London Borough of Brent had been using glyphosate spray at their sites.

**RESOLVED** – That the report be noted.

#### 7. QUESTIONS

There were none.

## 8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

The Group considered a recent application received by the Park Manager from a company who wished to install a wooden pavilion structure in an area of the Park during summer, with a view to using it for pop-up business and events such as food stalls and music performances. Members noted the negative effect that additional food outlets could have on the new Café leaseholder and concerns regarding increased car travel to the Park for regular events. The Group agreed to await the outcome of feedback from the event survey to consider this as a future addition to the Park.

In response to a member's (Queen's Park Area Residents' Association) question regarding the toilets by the children's play area, the Superintendent agreed to consider refurbishment opportunities to create improved access from the play area.

# 9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

**RESOLVED** – That the date of the next meeting on Wednesday 9 November 2016 be noted.

The meeting closed at 1.15 pm
Chairman

Contact Officer: David Arnold

David.Arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk